
American Disability Act (ADA) Accommodations Provided Upon Request 

 
 
 

AGENDA   
Regular Meeting of the Pierce County Library System Board of Trustees 

August 14, 2013 
 3:30 – 6:00 pm

 
3:30 pm 02 min. Call to Order:  Linda Ishem, Chair  
    
3:32 pm 05 min. Public Comment:  This is time set aside for members of the public to speak to the Board of Trustees.  Unless the item you wish to 

discuss is of an emergency nature, the Board ordinarily takes matters under advisement before taking action.  Please sign up at the 
time of the meeting to speak during the public Comment period, and limit your comments to three minutes. 

    
3:37 pm 03 min. Consent Agenda  Action 
  1. Approval of Minutes of the July 10, 2013 Regular Meeting  
  2. Approval of July 2013 Payroll, Benefits and Vouchers 

3.  Resolution 2013-06: To Declare Equipment Surplus to Public Service Needs 
 

    
3:40 pm 10 min. Board Members Report  
    
3:50 pm 15 min. Officers Reports  
  1. June Dashboard, Georgia Lomax   
  2. July 2013 Financial Report, Dale Hough  
  3. STEM Grants: Paul Allen & Lucky 7, Judy Nelson  
  4. Gig Harbor Landscaping, Robin Clausen 

5. Fife Turnaround Project, Lorie Erickson 
6. University Place Condominium Association, Neel Parikh 
7. Department Head Searches, Neel Parikh 
8. ULC Partners Conference, Neel Parikh 

 

    
  Unfinished Business  
4:05 pm 10 min. 

  5 min. 
  5 min. 

1. PAC HVAC, Clifford Jo and Lorie Erickson 
2. 2014 Budget: Calendar & Process, Clifford Jo 
3. 2014 CPIU, Clifford Jo 

 

    
  New Business  
4:25 pm 45 min. 

45 min. 
1. Intellectual Freedom and Pierce County Library System Practices, Sally Porter Smith, 

Judy Nelson, Jennifer Patterson 
2. Board Visioning of the Library’s Future, Neel Parikh 

 

     
    
5:55 pm 05 min. Executive Session:  At this time on the agenda, the Board of Trustees will recess to Executive Session, per RCW 42.30.110, to 

discuss personnel issues. 

    
6:00 pm 05 min. Announcements  
    
6:05 pm  Adjournment         
 

 

 



 



Minutes of July 10, 2013 Regular Meeting   Page 1 

 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES  
PIERCE COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM 
REGULAR MEETING, JULY 10, 2013 
 

CALL TO ORDER 

 
Chair Linda Ishem called to order the regular meeting of the Pierce County Rural Library District Board of 
Trustees July 10, 2013, 3:33 pm.  Board members present were J.J. McCament, Allen Rose, Donna 
Albers and Robert Allen. Ms. Parikh was absent. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
There was no public comment. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 
1. Minutes of the June 12, 2013 Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees 
2. June 2013 Payroll, Benefits and Vouchers in the total amount of $2,153,291.49 

a. Payroll Warrants 3432 - 3435, dated 06/01/13 – 06/30/13 in the amount of $3073.54 
b. Payroll Disbursement Voucher dated 06/06/13 in the amount of $563,809.94 
c. Payroll Disbursement Voucher dated 06/21/13 in the amount of $711,800.02 
d. Accounts Payable Warrants 620558 - 620761 dated 06/01/13 – 06/30/13 in the amount of 

$874,607.99 
3.  Resolution 2013-04: To Declare Equipment Surplus to Public Service Needs  

 
Chair Ishem requested the Board report of the June minutes be corrected to include the name of her 
colleague, and Foundation Board Member, Jill Purdy. 
  
Mr. Allen moved for approval of the consent agenda with correction to the minutes as noted.  Mr. Rose 
seconded the motion and it was passed.  
 

BOARD MEMBER REPORT 

 
There were no Board member reports. 
 
 

OFFICER REPORT 

 

Georgia Lomax: Ms. Lomax welcomed Debbie Johnson, a member of the DuPont Friends of the 
Library, to the meeting. 
 
Ms. Lomax informed the Board that she has offered the position of Senior Administrative 
Assistant to Bonnie Valens, who comes from the City of Edgewood. Petra McBride, Executive 
Assistant, introduced Brenda Tanksley, who has accepted a position as Temporary 
Administrative Specialist. 
 
The Foundation received $175,000 grant from Paul Allen for Science-to-Go, a STEM-related early 
learning proposal. The Library also received $5,000 from the Lucky Seven Foundation which will allow it 
to purchase block play sets for all the remaining libraries. 

 



Minutes of July 10, 2013 Regular Meeting   Page 2 

 
Ms. Lomax shared the Honorable Mention award the Library received from the Urban Libraries Council 
for the work of its Collection Budget Crew in analyzing and developing the 2013 collection budget.  Ms. 
McCament was pleased to see the announcement and the article recognizing the team. Copies of the 
booklet highlighting all the projects will be provided to the Board at the next meeting. 
 
Volunteer Improvement Program Update: Mary Getchell, Marketing and Community Relations 
Director, reported that the volunteer program team is in place and making continuous improvements and 
upgrades to the program.  Chair Ishem asked how many people inquired on the number of people who 
accounted for the 5,900 hours of voluntary service in 2012. Ms. Getchell indicated the Library had 210 
active volunteers in 2012. She noted the Library has far more requests to volunteer than positions 
available. When asked which segment of the population is most interested in volunteering, Ms. Getchell 
indicated that although youth are the largest segment of applicants due to high school requirements for 
community service, placement into positions is more frequently made to older members of the 
community. Ms. McCament asked if there was any emphasis by the Library to look at opportunities to 
volunteer for tutoring programs or events such as Our Own Expressions.  Ms. Getchell noted the Library 
has a very strong desire to place more volunteers. 
 
National Medal Photos: The Library received a set of professional photos taken at the White House 
during the National Medal award ceremony. The photos will on display at the Processing and 
Administration Center. 
 
University Place Atrium Artwork:  The artwork has been approved for installation into the University 
Place atrium. Ms. Lomax shared photos of the work.  More information will be provided in the future as 
the project progresses. 
 
Ashford Book Drop: Sally Porter Smith, Customer Experience Director reported that a book drop will be 
installed in Ashford in the Fire station parking lot on July 11, 2013. Ms. Porter Smith will monitor use and 
report back to the Board in six months. Staff will participate in an all-day community event on July 27, 
2013, to inform the public. Letters have been mailed to all Ashford residents informing them of the new 
book drop. The Board was pleased to see this small, yet effective, action was implemented to further 
meet the community’s needs. 
 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

 
Ratification of Labor Agreement: Holly Gorski, Staff Experience Director, and Joe Carrillo, the Library’s 
Labor Negotiator, reported that the negotiations for the Collective Bargaining Agreement have ended and 
97% of Bargaining Unit members voted to approve it. The COLA for 2013 will be 2.43%. For 2014, it will 
be set at 50% of the Consumer Price Index with a 1% floor and a 2% ceiling. For 2015, the 90% CPI 
formula will again be used.  
 
Mr. Allen asked whether, aside from pay and benefits, there are any issues that will affect the budget.  
Mr. Carrillo stated that part time employees who do not receive benefits will receive an increased amount 
of vacation after seven years. The Board praised both the management and the union negotiating teams 
for their commitment to resolving the issues timely. Mr. Carrillo praised the Union Team for their problem 
solving efforts. When asked about the 3% who voted against the contract, Elise DeGuiseppi, Union 
President, stated they are not interested in surveying the staff considering the significant percentage of 
votes in favor of the contract. 
  
Ms. DeGuiseppi introduced the members of the bargaining team to the Board.  Members present were 
Dylan Carlson, Staff Representative; Michelle Angel, Treasurer and Lakewood Youth Services Librarian; 
Yuri Button, Vice President and Senior Branch Assistant (Lakewood); Aisha Womack, Secretary and 



Minutes of July 10, 2013 Regular Meeting   Page 3 

Senior Branch Assistant and Page (Lakewood); Steven Holmes, Trustee and IT Specialist. Patti Cox, 
Chief Shop Steward and Community Branch Supervisor (Steilacoom), was not in attendance. 
 
Mr. Allen moved to ratify the 2013 Labor Agreement.  Ms. McCament seconded the motion and it 
passed.  
 
The contract was signed by the bargaining team and the Board.  

 
2013 Mid-Year Budget Adjustment - Operating Budget: Ms. Lomax reported that the mid-year 
adjustment process has been completed.  The Director’s team met with department heads in June, 
asking them to present any necessary adjustments and assess progress on projects and if there are any 
reallocation opportunities or changes in expenses.   
 
Chair Ishem asked if the Library underestimated the figure in the maintenance and operations line item.  
Ms. Lomax indicated it did, however it has been reset to a more realistic amount.  She indicated that the 
difference in the legal costs was related to establishing shared operations of the University Place building 
and personnel costs which were higher than expected.   
 
The Library plans to make one time technology purchases at the end of 2013, based on the technology 
plan recommendations. The Library also plans to purchase an additional three media towers to continue 
efforts to reduce theft.  
 
2013 Mid-Year Budget Adjustment - Capital Improvement Plan: Ms. Lomax requested the approval 
of a revised Capital Improvements Plan that reduces costs for IT closet cooling and adds money for 
improving power feeds to media dispensers and purchasing three copiers coming off lease. The 
adjustment also increases the budget for the PAC HVAC project. These changes increased the capital 
fund by $653,100.   
 
In her response to the Board’s concern with the HVAC costs, Ms. Lomax reported that early bids did not 
include the full scope of work and subsequent proposals indicated the facility’s system is out of 
compliance with building codes.  The final bid will ensure energy efficiency, provide an expanded lifespan 
and solve internal climate problems. The Library will also receive energy grants of $150,000 - 200,000 to 
help offset costs.  
 
The Bonney Lake projects will be eliminated at this time. Ms. Porter Smith indicated the roof was recently 
inspected and will not need replacement for another three years.  Ms. Lomax added that Clifford Jo’s 
report on the lifespan of major items and their replacement projections allows for sound budgeting of 
capital requirements. Given the current economic climate, the Library will not replace items if they are still 
in reasonably good condition. 
 
Mr. Allen has requested an update of the Capital Improvement process as the Library progresses.  Ms. 
Lomax confirmed that more information will be provided as the Library moves into the 2014 budgeting 
process. 
 
Ms. McCament made a motion to approve Resolution 2013-05 to revise the Capital Improvement Plan 
budget.  Mr. Allen seconded the motion and it was passed.  
 
 

NEW BUSINESS  

 
Workforce Partnership Agreement: Jaime Prothro, Customer Experience Manager, reported that the 
Library will be participating on the WorkSource Leadership Team which provides an important 
opportunity to stay connected with job seekers, workers and employers. She provided the Board with the 
Memorandum of Understanding and clarified that, although it does not include anything beyond the 



Minutes of July 10, 2013 Regular Meeting   Page 4 

scope of existing library services, it does enhance the Library’s existing partnership to engage with 
initiatives in support of job seekers.  The Library currently has offered 50 workshops to over 300 
individuals. Plans for 2014 workshops are underway. Ms. Prothro will attend a 2 hour meeting every 
month, which will have a minimal impact on the budget. When asked if the agreement is impacting funds 
received for the Job and Business Center, Ms. Prothro stated it is not and that a plan will be re-crafted for 
2014. 
 
Chair Ishem noted the importance of monitoring this partnership to see the impacts for the Library. Ms. 
McCament was interested in whether there was any attempt to streamline or combine partnerships. Ms. 
Lomax added that WorkSource spearheaded efforts to bring several organizations together in one place 
that are helping people with employment issues. 
 
2013 Assessed Property Values Report: The Library has received the unofficial tax certification report 
from Pierce County Assessor’s office. Ms. Lomax reported the revenue projection from 2014 property 
values is more favorable than earlier predictions. The Library will identify strategies to close the gap in 
the budget. Early indications point to no staff layoffs. She cautioned that until the official preliminary 
certification is received in September, these are merely projections. The Library’s budgeting and 
expenditure philosophy strategy will be revisited. She expressed appreciation of the Board’s counsel and 
support through the past four years during which the Library has had to make difficult decisions. 
 
Intellectual Freedom - Children’s Internet Protection Act and Filtering:  - Ms. Porter Smith 
presented information on the Children’s’ Internet Protection Act (CIPA). To provide historical perspective, 
she reported that in 1995 the Library introduced 4 public internet computer workstations. In 2001, that 
number increased to 150. In 2006, it increased to 312 and, in 2011, there were 483 public access 
computers. In looking at the law it is important to remember what it was like in the 1990's. CIPA was the 
result of the transition in society in which suddenly there was nearly unlimited and unrestricted access to 
an online world of ideas, information and resources, all available for viewing in the public library. 
  
 
To be CIPA compliant is a choice each library makes. In order to receive e-Rate discounts, libraries must 
be compliant. Some libraries who are not CIPA compliant still utilize filtering, which indicates there are a 
variety of approaches. Many neighboring library systems operate similarly by automatically filtering 
access to youth 17 and younger to help reduce inadvertent viewing and predatory practices. Filtering 
also includes staff access to PC's.  
 
When asked about the financial impact of the e-Rate on the budget. Kerry Nielan, IT Director indicated it 
was close to $200,000, equating to approximately 60% of Telco costs.  
 
Ms. Porter Smith indicated one concern is inadvertent viewing - library customers seeing what other 
customers are viewing at their computer. The different approaches libraries have taken in dealing with 
inadvertent viewing was discussed, including PCLS’s approach to deal with behavior issues related to 
inadvertent viewing or moving the customer to a recessed workstation.  With the increase in mobile 
technology libraries are facing issues with Wi-Fi not being filtered. There has been some work on legal 
opinions but the Library approaches inadvertent viewing as more of a behavior problem than a filter 
problem. Wi-Fi will need to be addressed in policies as it is not covered by CIPA. Ms. Porter Smith 
shared statistics that 91% of the US population has mobile technology, 56% have smart phones and 
34% have tablets. According to PEW, mobile technology subscription rates are double the population in 
many countries. Ms. Albers asked if there are recommendations or standards currently being evaluated, 
noting that a balance must be struck between public relations and legal aspects.  Ms. Porter Smith 
indicated that most customers using their own technology are very private and responses vary from 
different library systems, but there are no industry standards. Ms. Lomax noted the American Library 
Association and Public Library Association technology sectors monitor and follow decisions being made 
so that libraries are informed. She indicated this is an opportunity for boards and libraries to make a 
decision as to what they believe are their community standards. 
 



Minutes of July 10, 2013 Regular Meeting   Page 5 

Al Rose stressed that libraries exist due to the support of their taxpayers. He is in favor of Wi-Fi use on 
personal devices, adding that many low income customers have no broadband and need the access 
provided by the Library. Ms. Porter Smith agreed, noting that 20% of those using public Internet have no 
other access and are using the library 3-5 times per week for job searches, homework and government  
forums.  
 
Ms. Porter Smith asked if there are specific issues the Board would like to see addressed.  The Board 
expressed a desire to understand training of staff and how they are kept up to date. It was asked at what 
point the behavior responses are escalated from gentle nudging to law enforcement involvement and 
whether these occurrences are tracked. Ms. Lomax indicated that the instances raised to a level out of 
the ordinary and involving extreme measures are being tracked. The Library is proactive and has 
installed recessed monitors and PCs in certain areas where those customers with a history of use are 
seated. Mr. Allen requested tracking information on the number of wireless devices used in the system. 
Andrew Schultz, Network Administrator, stated there are roughly 400 concurrent connections throughout 
the day, adding that more data is traveling through Wi-Fi than through PC’s. Total Wi-Fi users are over 
60,000 per month. Mr. Allen expressed interest in whether this amount of access will impact the budget 
by eliminating the need to purchase as many PC’s. The IT department has been forward-thinking in 
looking at this aspect and has ensured the Library can provide adequate bandwidth.  
 
Staff Web and Board Page Introduction: David Durante, Customer Experience Manager - Virtual 
Services, introduced the Board to the new Board of Trustees page on the internal Staff Web.  The page 
has been created to provide links to information on board related interests and resources. Mr. Durante 
will email the members a direct link to the page. 
 
Mr. Durante also provided a demonstration of the new Staff Web which was deployed in April, noting that 
it offers a more user-friendly platform allowing for staff to easily input information. The new platform has 
been well received by staff and is evolving daily.  Chair Ishem was pleased with the efficiency of the new 
system.  Ms. Lomax also provided information on a new app called Note Suite, which may improve the 
Board members’ experience with the digital Board packet on their iPads.  
 
Interactive Discovery Platform: Mr. Durante asked the Board to authorize the Library to sign a contract 
with Library Times, the vendor who was awarded the bid for the interactive platform development and will 
further develop the concept of gamification. 
 
Ms. McCament moved to authorize the Library to sign a contract or purchase order not to exceed 
$70,000. Mr. Allen seconded the motion and it passed. 
 
PAC HVAC Project:  Ms. Lomax requested approval of the PAC HVAC project as part of the mid-year 
budget. She will discuss the project in greater detail with Clifford Jo, Finance and Business Director, and 
Lorie Erickson, Facilities Director, who will provide additional information at the next meeting. 
 
Ms. McCament moved to approve the project not to exceed $1,126,000.  Mr. Allen seconded the motion 
and it passed. 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 
At   5:45 pm, Mr. Allen moved to enter into Executive Session as per RCW 42.30.110 for 15 minutes for 
discussion of personnel matters.   Ms. McCament seconded the motion and it passed. The session was 
reopened to the public at 6:02 pm. 
 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 



Minutes of July 10, 2013 Regular Meeting   Page 6 

Ms. Lomax announced that Holly Gorski, Staff Experience Director, will be leaving the Library on July 12, 
2013.  Ms. Ishem thanked Holly Gorski for her service to the Library. Ms. McCament thanked Ms. Gorski 
for her phenomenal work on the contract and noted that she was pleased and appreciative of her 
leadership in taking the Staff Experience department to a new level. 
 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 6:05 pm on motion by Mr. Allen, seconded by Ms. Albers.  
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________     _______________________________________ 
Neel Parikh, Secretary    Linda Ishem, Chair   
 
 



Payroll Warrants
Disbursement Voucher - Payroll & Acct Payable
Disbursement Voucher - Payroll & Acct Payable
Accounts Payable Warrants
Total:

July 2013 Payroll, Benefits and Vouchers

Warrant Numbers

3436-3452

620762-620919

Date(s)

07 t01t13-07131113
07t05t13
07t22t13

07 t01113-07131113

$4,456.09
$523,085.20
$918,054.72



Sch: Pav Date: 7/5/2013Pierce Countv Rural Libram District: Ors 04

COUNTY OF PIERCE
BUDGET AND FINANCE DEPARTMENT

Fica ER and Medicare - VMre to I

DIR DEP-file to Columbia

FIT EE WRE to IRS

Fica EE and Medicare - Wre to IRS

Fica ER and Medicare - VMre to I

H.S.A. Emolover Contributions
H.S.A Fee

please put the total amt below into PCLS payroll account

Christv TelliChristv Telli

Date:

7t3t2013

DJV 07052013 PC copy .xlsx



Pierce Countv Rural Librum Districl: Ore 04 Sch: Pav Date: 7/22/2013

COUNTY OF PIERCE
BUDGET AND FINANCE DEPARTMENT

Disbursement
Journal Voucher

(T/c\74

Agency No. D.J.V. Date D.J.V No.

001-116
revised

7t22t20',13

Account Code Acct.
Actton DESCRIPIION AMOUN IFun0 uept Prog tsASUB Elem UU M/UB

697 001 0000 zJt 00 FTT EE ANCI EIC. W E tO II-{S 5s9,558.12

Z 697 001 0000 237 00 Fica EE and Medicare - Wire to IRS 543,123.95

3 697 001 0000 237 00 Fica ER and Medicare - Wire to IRS s43,123.9s

4 697 001 0000 237 00 DIR DEP-file to Columbia Bank s410,s81.63

5 697 001 0000 237 00
6 697 001 0000 237 00
7 697 001 0000 237 00 dept of rev s1,399.01

8 697 001 0000 237 00 COLA Retro

9 697 001 0000 237 00 Wages S152,ooo.oo

l0 697 001 0000 237 00 Taxes S11,G28.00

1l 697 001 0000 237 00 PERS s11,000.00

12 697 00'l 0000 237 00
t3 697 001 0000 237 00 H.S.A. correction for 11612013 S83.34

t4 697 001 0000 237 00
l5 697 001 0000 237 00 H.S.A. Employees deductions 52,O7O.2s

l6 697 00'l 0000 237 00 H.S.A. Employer Contributions
H.S.A Fee 5272.4O

BCC AUG 5783,274.O7

please put the total amt below into PCLS payroll account

TOTAL s9L8,O54.72

Bank No. Check No. lssued To Bank No. Check No. lssued To

U.S. Treasury

Prepared By:

Christv Tellinq

Date:

7119t2013

Approved By:

Christy Tellinq 7t19t2013

OJV 07222013 PC copy (2).xlsx



pyCkHast
81112013 9:08:39AM

Check History Listing
Pierce County Library System

Page:

Check# Bank Date Paid to Status Can/Vd Date Pay Period Dates Dir Dep Amount

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

3436 pr

3437 pr

3438 pr

3439 pr

3440 pr

3441 pr

3442 pr
3443 pr

3444 pr

3445 pr
3446 pr

3447 pr

3448 pr

3449 pr

3450 pr

3451 pr

3452 pr

Bank of America
Bank of America
Bank of America
Bank of America
Bank of America
Bank of America
Bank of America
Bank of America
Bank of America
Bank of America
Bank of America
Bank of America
Bank of America
Bank of America
Bank of America
Bank of America
Bank of America

07t05t2013
07to512013
07to5t2013
07to5t2013
07t23t2013
07t23t2013
07t2312013
07123t2013
07t23t2013
07t2312013
07t2312013
07t23t2013
07123t2013
07t23t2013
07t23t2013
07t23t2013
07t23t2013

CONGER, ANDREW
HAYWOOD, DEBORAH
TANKSLEY, BRENDA
KENNEY, MELANIE
RUNYAN, SUSAN
ABRAHAM, ETHAN
BLACK, KAYLA
GOUGH, ANDREA
HALE, MEREDITH
LAYBOURN, DONNA
WENDOVER, MARTHA
JARVIS, KAREN
SCHOPPERT, JOHN
JEX, JAY
CALHOUN, AMANDA
SMITH, DARLENE
JACOBSON, LINDA

06/16/13 - 06/30/13
06/16/13 - 06/30/13
06/16/13 - 06/30/13
o6t16t13 - 06/30/13
07t23113 - 07123113

07t23t13 - 07123113

07t23t13 - 07123t13
07t23t13 - 07123113

07t23t13 - 07t23113
07t23t13 - 07123t13
07t23113 - 07123113

07t23t13 - 07123t13
07t23113 - 07123113

07t23113 - 07123t13
07123t13 - 07123113

07123t13 - 07123113

07t23113 - 07123113

308.22
441.40

1,016.21
862.29
152.78
37.87
33.81
60.76

534.19
44.78

204.93
77.25
27.97
42.92

221.06
373.75

15.90

Total: 0.00 4,456.09

Checks in report: 17 Grand Total: 0.00 4,456.09

Page:



Check History Listing
Pierce County Library System

Page: 1

0810112013 9:46AM

Bank code: boa

Check # Status Check Total

620762 07t03t2013
620763 07t03t2013
620764 0710312013
620765 07t0312013
620766 07t03t2013
620767 07t03t2013
620768 07103t2013
620769 07t03t2013
620770 0710312013
620771 07105t2013
620772 07t0512013
620773 07t05t2013
620774 07t05t2013
620775 07105t2013
620776 07t05t2013
620777 0710512013
620778 07t05t2013
620779 07t05t2013
620780 07t0512013
620781 07t05t2013
620782 07t0512013
620783 07t08t2013
620784 07t08t2013
620785 07t08t2013
620786 0710812013
620787 07t08t2013
620788 0710812013
620789 07108t2013
620790 0710812013
620791 07t08t2013
620792 0710812013
620793 07t08t2013
620794 07t08t2013
620795 0710812013
620796 07t0812013
620797 07t08t2013
620798 0710812013
620799 07t08t2013

000363 ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES
OOO176 ATS AUTOMATION INC
005623 ROBERT BEATW
OOO895 COLUMBIA BANK
005272 GREEN EFFECTS INC
003985 PACIFICSOURCE ADMI NISTRATORS
OOO37O PIERCE COUNTY
OOO374 POSTMASTER
OOO534 WCP SOLUTIONS
005369 BIRCH ELECTRIC LLC
001467 DATA SECURITY CORP
005428 GRITTON BUILDING CO INC
00467 4 MCHUGH MANAGEMENT CONSULTI NG
OOO979 ORBIS CASCADE ALLIANCE
OO129O REGIONAL BUILDING SVCS CORP
005417 RICOH USA INC
005259 RIM PUBLICATIONS LLC
OOO184 CITY TREASURER
OOO195 FIRGROVE MUTUAL WATER CO
OOO377 PUGET SOUND ENERGY
000460 STEILACOOM TO!ryN OF
OOO828 AFSCME AFL-CIO
003311 DEPARTMENT OF LABOR & INDUSTRI
OOO898 DEPARTMENT OF RETIREMENT SYSTE
000825 ING-VC3371
003985 PACI FICSOURCE ADMI NISTRATORS
001181 PIERCE CTY LIBRARY FOUNDATION
004276 STATE CENTRAL COLLECTION UNIT
OOO823 UNITED WAY
004782 US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
OOO827 WA STATE- DEPT OF RETIREMENT S
OOO881 WASHINGTON STATE SUPPORT REGIS
OO5O47 PATTYAMADOR
002061 SUSAN ANDERSON-NEWHAM
OOO242 BUCKLEY CITY OF
OOO184 CITY TREASURER
OOO184 CITY TREASURER
OOO184 CITY TREASURER

16.41
4,507.28

21.88
50.00

1,145.42
194.25
184.80
920.00
201.80

5,014.24
132.50
743.92

4,725.00
5,926.00

507.25
221.56

46.25
2,213.68

345.50
1,654.12

891.19
5,243.08

57,633.06
7,824.00
1,825.00
2,091.00

348.1 0
151.67

97.51
153.95

60,955.81
6'12.50
110.74
40.23

267.25
628.48
442.38
31.53



Check History Listing
Pierce County Library System

Page:2

08t01t2013 9:46AM

Bank code: boa

Check # Date Vendor Status Check Total

620800 07t08t2013
620801 07t08t2013
620802 07t08t2013
620803 07t0812013
620804 07t08t2013
620805 07t08t2013
620806 07t08t2013
620807 07t08t2013
620808 07t08t2013
620809 07t0912013
620810 07t09t2013
620811 07t0912013
620812 07t09t2013
620813 07t0912013
620814 07109t2013
620815 07t09t2013
620816 0710912013
620817 07t09t20',t3
620818 07t09t2013
620819 07t0912013
620820 07t09t2013
620821 07t09t2013
620822 07t09t2013
620823 07109t2013
620824 07t09t2013
620825 07t09t2013
620826 07t10t2013
620827 07t12t2013
620828 07t12t2013
620829 07t12t2013
620830 07t12t2013
620831 07t12t2013
620832 07t1212013
620833 07t12t2013
620834 07t12t2013
620835 07t12t2013
620836 07t12t2013
620837 07t12t2013
620838 07t12t2013

001342 KRISTI NE COUNTRYMAN
OOOO94 ELMHURST MUTUAL POWER & LIGHT
004157 MINDY EWING
OOO2O7 GIG HARBOR CITY OF
004128 LISA HEYERDAHL
OOO377 PUGET SOUND ENERGY
OOO38O QUALITY BOOKS
OO5O44 KATH ERI NE SAVAGE
004828 SOUTH PUGET SD CHAPTER/SHRM
OOO83O BAKER & TAYLOR
OOO189 BAKER & TAYLOR ENTERTAINMENT
OOO161 CENGAGE LEARNING
OOO847 CENTER POINT PUBLISHING
OOO243 I NGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES
OOO352 MIDWEST TAPE
OOO352 MIDWEST TAPE
OOO323 NEWS TRIBUNE
001419 RANDOM HOUSE INC
000406 RECORDED BOOKS LLC
OOO895 COLUMBIA BANK
OO1O35 GOTTLIEB FISHER & ANDREWS PLLC
005272 GREEN EFFECTS INC
004955 MEDCO SUPPLY COMPANY
OOO857 PIERCE COUNTY RECYCLING
001379 SENTINEL PEST CONTROL INC
000496 THYSSEN SOUND ELEVATOR
OO4O22 US BANK
005453 DANA BROWNFIELD
OOO273 CARRILLO & ASSOCIATES
OOO895 COLUMBIA BANK
003311 DEPARTMENT OF LABOR & INDUSTRI
OOO374 POSTMASTER
OO197O CAROL SHEEHAN
004397 SHKSARCHITECTS PS INC
OOO497 TILLICUM COMMUNITY SERVICE CEN
003719 UNIQUE MANAGEMENT SERVICES
OOO83O BAKER & TAYLOR
004445 DOROTHY BARELLI
003423 ALEXANDER BYRNE

V

81.36
876.1 0

46.04
1,301.71

10.17
874.90
1 37.1 6

91.81
200.00

25,668.35
36.07

6,532.01
62.91

28,148.18
0.00

12,001.02
454.80
147.83
243.91
309.00
798.00

6,416.61
77.36

115.03
708.70

2,121.76
139,722.70

76.56
2,656.25

229.99
21.50

140.00
201.55
412.50

3,854.79
2,282.25

500.00
30.78
50.29



Check History Listing
Pierce County Library System

Page:3
08t01t2013 9:46AM

Bank code: boa

Check # Date Vendor Status Check Total

620839 07t12t2013
620840 0711212013
620841 07t12t2013
620842 0711612013
620843 07t18t2013
620844 07118t2013
620845 07t18t2013
620846 07t1812013
620847 07t18t2013
620848 07t18t2013
620849 07t23t2013
620850 07t2312013
620851 07t23t2013
620852 07t23t2013
620853 07t2312013
620854 07t23t2013
620855 07123120',t3
620856 07123t2013
620857 07t23t2013
620858 07t2312013
620859 07t23t2013
620860 0712312013
620861 07t23t2013
620862 07t23t2013
620863 07t23t2013
620864 07t23t2013
620865 07t23t2013
620866 07t23t2013
620867 07t23t2013
620868 07t23t2013
620869 07t23t2013
620870 07t23t2013
620871 07t23t2013
620872 07t23t2013
620873 07t23t2013
620874 07t23t2013
620875 07t23t2013
620876 07t23t2013
620877 07t23t2013

OOO184 CITY TREASURER
OO5107 ART HOOVER
OOO541 STATE OF WASHINGTON
OO4O22 US BANK
OO4O22 US BANK
000363 ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES
001586 NORTHWEST DOOR INC
005620 OREGON SHADOW THEATRE
005417 RTCOH USA tNC
OOO497 TILLICUM COMMUNITY SERVICE CEN
002086 MICHELLE ANGELL
001764 CASCADIA INTERNATIONAL LLC
004392 CENTRAL WASH I NGTON U N IVERSITY
003311 DEPARTMENT OF LABOR & INDUSTRI
OOOO41 EMPLOYMENT SECURITY DEPARTMENT
005481 GREAT FALLS PUBLIC LIBRARY
005642 HILLIS CLARK MARTIN & PETERSON
005649 JACKSON COUNTY LIBRARY SERVICE
001941 JUDYT NELSON
003933 QUALITY BUSINESS SYSTEMS INC
001419 RANDOM HOUSE INC
001137 SPOKANE COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRIC
OOO487 TACOMA RUBBER STAMP
005650 UNIVERSITY OF SAN FRANCISCO
005646 BRYAN ADSIT
005632 CAPITOL CELEBRATIONS LLC
OOO184 CITY TREASURER
OOO184 CIry TREASURER
OO5O55 CH RISTOPHER HAMILTON
005647 RICK HAVERKAMP
OO54O3 SARAH JENSEN
OO37 37 TONIE MONTGOMERY
OO21OO ALISON PASCONE
005648 LINDA PERRY
004972 LAURA SCHMINKEY
OO2O94 CHARLOTTE STRAIN
000463 SUMMIT WATER & SUPPLY CO
003778 AFLAC
OOO828 AFSCME AFL-CIO

869.84
18.08

394.06
37,216.75
75,865.66

16.41
1,424.93
2,000.00
1,540.71
3,785.45

99.31
2,077.06

62.00
600.00

2,481.78
15.00

126.00
30.00
20.37

1,323.74
1,772.07

16.00
47.30
90.00
10.00

653.82
4,374.84

747.61
62.94
12.99

312.47
84.75
84.42
89.64

116.20
139.55
391.72

3,646.04
5,454.44



Check History Listing
Pierce County Library System

Page:4
08t01t2013 9:46AM

Bank code: boa

Check # Date Vendor Status Check Total

620878 07t23t2013
620879 07t23t2013
620880 07t23t2013
620881 07t23t2013
620882 07t23t2013
620883 07t23t2013
620884 07t23t2013
620885 07t23t2013
620886 07t23t2013
620887 07t23t20',t3
620888 07t26t2013
620889 07t26t2013
620890 07t26t20',t3
620891 07t26t2013
620892 07t26t2013
620893 07126t2013
620894 07t26t2013
620895 07t26t20',t3
620896 07t26t2013
620897 07t26t2013
620898 07t26t2013
620899 07t26t2013
620900 07t26t2013
620901 07t26t2013
620902 07t26t2013
620903 07t2612013
620904 07t26t2013
620905 07t26t2013
620906 07t26t2013
620907 07t2612013
620908 07126t2013
620909 07t26t2013
620910 07t26t2013
620911 07t26t2013
620912 07t26t2013
620913 07t26t2013
620914 07t30t2013
620915 07t30120',t3
620916 07t30t20',t3

OO1 578 COLONIAL SUPPLEMENTAL I NSURANC
OOO898 DEPARTMENT OF RETIREMENT SYSTE
000825 ING-VC3371
003985 PACI FICSOU RCE ADMI NISTRATORS
001181 PIERCE Cry LIBRARY FOUNDATION
004276 STATE CENTRAL COLLECTION UNIT
OOO823 UNITED WAY
004782 US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
OOO827 WA STATE- DEPT OF RETIREMENT S
OOO881 WASHINGTON STATE SUPPORT REGIS
003311 DEPARTMENT OF LABOR & INDUSTRI
OO4143IMAGE SOURCE INC
005551 MECHANICAL & CONTROL SVCS INC
001586 NORTHWEST DOOR INC
003985 PACI FICSOU RCE ADMI N ISTRATORS
OOO487 TACOMA RUBBER STAMP
OOO534 WCP SOLUTIONS
004957 WETHERHOLT AND ASSOCIATES I NC
001583 ALtBRtS
OOO83O BAKER & TAYLOR
OOO189 BAKER & TAYLOR ENTERTAINMENT
004129 MARIAN NA BISSONNETTE
OOO161 CENGAGE LEARNING
OOO847 CENTER POINT PUBLISHING
003379 GENEVI EVE DETTMER
000093 EBSCO
001958 SHARRON GRAHAM
OOO243 INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES
OOO352 MID\A/EST TAPE
001941 JUDYTNELSON
OOO323 NEWS TRIBUNE
OOO377 PUGET SOUND ENERGY
OOO38O QUALITY BOOKS
001419 RANDOM HOUSE INC
000506 UNIVERSIW PLACE REFUSE SERVIC
OO1 930 MARGARET VENEMON
005261 MODERN DATA PRODUCTS INC
005417 RICOH USA tNC
005056 SILKROAD TECHNOLOGY INC

1,107.96
7,824.00
1,850.00
2,091.00

348.1 0
151.67

97.51
173.79

78,242.34
612.50
457.06
954.04
976.63
128.67
194.25

18.96
764.51

1,179.75
159.69

11,455.65
34.13

230.80
3,345.46
2,340.93

36.33
23.91
27.12

6,733.96
14,475.35

50.06
682.20

2,909.89
137.16
131.40
166.87

15.05
275.67

7,826.56
6,025.17



Gheck History Listing
Pierce Gounty Library System

Page: 5

0810'112013 9:46AM

Bank code: boa

Check # Status Check Total

620917 07t3012013
620918 07t30t2013
620919 07t30t2013

OOO742 TACOMA DIESEL & EQUIPMENT INC
005416 WLMINGTON DRIVE HOLDINGS LLC
004391 WRP SURPRISE LAKE LLC

3,202.94
8,781.83
7,643.07

158 checks in this report

boa Total:

Total Checks:

727,717.18

727,717.18













 



CUSTOMER SERVICE/PHILANTHROPY DASHBOARD - JUNE

June 2013 Dashboard.xlsx8/6/2013

2012 2013 % Change

Door Count 221,560 206,509             -6.79%

Catalog 195,319 169,966             -12.98%

Website 227,230 195,823             -13.82%

Job & Business Portal 1,213 2,882                 137.59%

Military Portal (launched 3/12) 191 181                    -5.24%

Total 645,513 575,361             -10.87%

2,012                     2,013                 % Change

Checkouts 670,415                580,489             -13.41%

eBook Downloads 46,210                  50,219               8.68%

Total 716,625                630,708             -11.99%

2,012                     2,013                 % Change

Active Cardholders 255,989                245,901             -3.94%

New Cards 5,045                     5,003                 -0.83%

Checkout Transactions 111,820                98,421               -11.98%

Unique Users 50,329                  47,369               -5.88%

2012 2013 % Change

Foundation Donors 367 146 -60.22%

New Foundation Donors 93 35 -62.37%

$ Raised by Foundation 24,097$                15,584$             -35.33%

$ Provided by Friends $5,252 $0 -100.00%

PHILANTHROPY

June

BRANCH CLOSURES

VISITS

June

CHECKOUTS

June

CUSTOMERS

June

1,099,527 

1,271,639 
1,385,159 

1,349,872 
1,278,270  1,232,306  

47,781 

937,510 

1,214,817 

1,014,336 

1,170,876 

 1,065,099  

703,092 

1,222,497 

1,478,595 

1,680,214 

1,363,141 
 1,260,233  

0

200,000

400,000

600,000

800,000

1,000,000

1,200,000

1,400,000

1,600,000

1,800,000

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Year-To-Date Comparison 

Locations

Catalog

Website

*Problem with software that recorded Catalog visits May-December 2011 

3,208,109 

3,642,263 

4,391,948 4,349,098 
4,231,736 

3,790,606 

2,000,000

2,500,000

3,000,000

3,500,000

4,000,000

4,500,000

5,000,000

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Year-To-Date Comparison 

Total
Checkouts

214,925 
225,739 

244,621 243,590 

255,989 

241,111 

112,159 
111,028 

104,216 
103,546 

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Year-To-Date Comparison 

Active Cardholders

Unique Users

1439 1,362 

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2012 2013

Year-To-Date Comparison* 

Total Donors

*Foundation Fiscal Year is July through June 

2012 
Snow Closures    1/17-1/23 (7 Days) 
Bonney Lk   2/13-2/26 (13 Days)  
Graham   3/21-4/5 (15 Days)  
South Hill   4/9-5/6 (27 Days)  
Tillicum      7/3-8/5 (33 Days) 
Sumner     7/30-9/3 (35 Days)  
Summit    9/17-9/30 (13 Days)  
Steilacoom    10/17-11/14 (28 Days)  
Bkmbl  Ended   11/11   
Key Center    11/14-12/31 (47 Days)  

2013 
Key Center  1/1-2/3 (34 Days)  



 

 

Monthly	Financial	Reports	–	July	2013	



 General Fund   Debt Service Fund 

Capital Improvement 

Projects Fund

1,759,564$               9$                                167,789$                      

7,850,000$               83,518$                     2,025,000$                  

9,609,564$              83,527$                     2,192,789$                  

9,609,564$              83,527$                     2,192,789$                  

61,424$                    ‐$                            17,406$                        

1,861$                      ‐$                            ‐$                               

118,009$                  ‐$                            ‐$                               

181,293$                  ‐$                            17,406$                        

470,718$                  ‐$                            365,551$                      

(443,701)$                 83$                             1,038,778$                  

9,401,254$               83,444$                     771,054$                      

9,428,271$              83,527$                     2,175,383$                  

9,609,564$              83,527$                     2,192,789$                  

Anticipated Property Tax Revenue 12,069,099$            39$                             ‐$                               

Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

Total Current Liabilities

Fund Balance

Reserve for Encumbrances

Net Excess (Deficit)

Unreserved Fund Balance

Payroll Taxes and Benefits Payable

Cash

Investments

Total Cash

Total Current Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Current Liabilities

Warrants Payable

Sales Tax Payable 

Current Assets ‐ Cash

Pierce County Library System

Statement of Financial Position

July 31, 2013

All Funds

Assets

prepared by Dale E. Hough, Finance Manager Unadited Statement 8/5/2013

Page 2 of 6



Page 3 of 6



Page 4 of 6



Page 5 of 6



Page 6 of 6



Pierce County Library System

Board Report - Budget to Actual by Object

Report as of: 7/31/2013

Printed on: 08/05/2013 Page 1 of 5

FUND: GENERAL FUND (01)

Object Year-To-Date

Actual

2013

Budget

Encumbrances Balance Expend

%Actual

July

REVENUE ACCOUNTS

29150  USE OF FUND BALANCE-BUDGET  762,126.00  0.00  0.00  762,126.00  0.0  0.00

31111  PROPERTY TAXES CURRENT  22,831,773.00  12,335,904.10  0.00  10,495,868.90  54.0  77,421.56

31112  PROPERTY TAXES DELINQUENT  913,271.00  628,590.44  0.00  284,680.56  68.8  36,818.95

31130  SALE OF TAX TITLE PROPERTY  3,000.00  0.00  0.00  3,000.00  0.0  0.00

31210  PRIVATE HARVEST TAX  70,000.00  34,360.11  0.00  35,639.89  49.1  0.00

31720  LEASEHOLD EXCISE TAX  20,000.00  19,266.31  0.00  733.69  96.3  0.00

TAXES:  24,600,170.00  13,018,120.96  0.00  11,582,049.04  52.9  114,240.51

33533  STATE FOREST FUNDS  4,000.00  1,865.53  0.00  2,134.47  46.6  0.00

33872  CONTRACTS FEES - CITIES  3,400.00  1,620.00  0.00  1,780.00  47.6  0.00

33890  GOVERMENTAL GRANTS  0.00  5,375.33  0.00 (5,375.33)  0.0  5,200.00

34160  COPIER FEES  28,000.00  16,425.09  0.00  11,574.91  58.7  2,308.82

34161  GRAPHICS SERVICES CHARGES  4,400.00  4,657.55  0.00 (257.55)  105.9  256.60

34162  PRINTER FEES  70,000.00  42,242.37  0.00  27,757.63  60.3  5,136.84

34730  INTERLIBRARY LOAN FEES  0.00  143.87  0.00 (143.87)  0.0  15.95

35970  LIBRARY FINES  580,000.00  342,127.09  0.00  237,872.91  59.0  44,951.25

36110  INVESTMENT INCOME  10,000.00  7,386.42  0.00  2,613.58  73.9  947.71

36111  INTEREST -  STATE FOREST FUND  0.00  0.47  0.00 (0.47)  0.0  0.03

36190  OTHER INTEREST EARNINGS  0.00  4.09  0.00 (4.09)  0.0  0.57

36200  KEY PEN HLTH DEPT FACILITY REV  0.00  419.12  0.00 (419.12)  0.0  0.00

36700  FOUNDATION DONATIONS  150,000.00  50,882.00  0.00  99,118.00  33.9  0.00

36710  FRIENDS' DONATIONS  0.00  362.11  0.00 (362.11)  0.0  0.00

36720  FRIENDS' REIMBURSEMENTS  12,000.00  11,510.58  0.00  489.42  95.9  0.00

36725  DONATIONS - OTHER  1,000.00  2,583.69  0.00 (1,583.69)  258.4  545.51

36910  SALE OF SCRAP AND SALVAGE  0.00  1.00  0.00 (1.00)  0.0  1.00

36920  BOOK SALE REVENUE  6,000.00  3,183.61  0.00  2,816.39  53.1  4.00

36990  MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE  30,000.00  30,303.79  0.00 (303.79)  101.0  2,043.04

36991  PAYMENT FOR LOST MATERIALS  17,000.00  10,014.31  0.00  6,985.69  58.9  1,155.77

36994  UNCLAIMED PROPERTY  0.00  95.62  0.00 (95.62)  0.0  0.00

36995  COLLECTION AGENCY REVENUE  0.00  461.98  0.00 (461.98)  0.0  80.00

36996  JURY DUTY REIMBURSEMENT  0.00  190.00  0.00 (190.00)  0.0  0.00

36997  PRIOR YEAR'S REFUNDS  1,600.00  1,582.50  0.00  17.50  98.9  0.00

36998  E RATE REIMBURSEMENT  6,000.00  12,936.29  0.00 (6,936.29)  215.6  6,915.92

36999  REBATES - PROCUREMENT CARD  19,500.00  16,583.60  0.00  2,916.40  85.0  0.00

CHARGES OTHER:  942,900.00  562,958.01  0.00  379,941.99  59.7  69,563.01

39510  SALE OF FIXED ASSETS  0.00  118.35  0.00 (118.35)  0.0  0.00

39520  INSURANCE RECOVERIES - CAPITAL ASSETS  3,500.00  3,426.32  0.00  73.68  97.9  0.00

TOTAL FOR REVENUE ACCOUNTS  13,584,623.64  25,546,570.00  0.00  53.2  11,961,946.36  183,803.52 

EXPENSE ACCOUNTS

51100  SALARIES AND WAGES  13,310,332.00  7,553,047.92  0.00  5,757,284.08  56.7  1,173,014.21

51105  ADDITIONAL HOURS  240,200.00  147,133.78  0.00  93,066.22  61.3  26,384.25

51106  SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL  147,872.00  77,976.77  0.00  69,895.23  52.7  13,350.88

51107  SUBSTITUTE HOURS  316,350.00  163,952.59  0.00  152,397.41  51.8  24,849.28

51109  TUITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM  3,000.00  1,410.35  0.00  1,589.65  47.0  0.00

51200  OVERTIME WAGES  7,100.00  2,640.82  0.00  4,459.18  37.2  209.56

51999  ADJ WAGE/SALARY TO MATCH PLAN (259,227.00)  0.00  0.00 (259,227.00)  0.0  0.00

52001  INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE  165,787.00  95,293.40  0.00  70,493.60  57.5  14,125.46



Pierce County Library System

Board Report - Budget to Actual by Object

Report as of: 7/31/2013

Printed on: 08/05/2013 Page 2 of 5

FUND: GENERAL FUND (01)

Object Year-To-Date

Actual

2013

Budget

Encumbrances Balance Expend

%Actual

July

EXPENSE ACCOUNTS

52002  MEDICAL INSURANCE  2,077,991.00  1,184,528.91  0.00  893,462.09  57.0  204,949.89

52003  F.I.C.A.  1,085,861.00  597,764.26  0.00  488,096.74  55.0  93,609.32

52004  RETIREMENT  994,557.00  539,136.29  0.00  455,420.71  54.2  93,749.05

52005  DENTAL INSURANCE  217,822.00  118,490.01  0.00  99,331.99  54.4  17,079.27

52006  OTHER BENEFIT  10,620.00  5,320.00  0.00  5,300.00  50.1  680.00

52010  LIFE AND DISABILITY INSURANCE  24,185.00  13,871.45  0.00  10,313.55  57.4  1,933.87

52020  UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION  20,000.00  6,877.30  0.00  13,122.70  34.4  2,481.78

52200  UNIFORMS  1,300.00  0.00  0.00  1,300.00  0.0  0.00

52999  ADJ BENEFITS TO MATCH PLAN (77,914.00)  0.00  0.00 (77,914.00)  0.0  0.00

PERSONNEL  18,285,836.00  10,507,443.85  0.00  7,778,392.15  57.5  1,666,416.82

53100  OFFICE/OPERATING SUPPLIES  158,300.00  98,811.24  25,857.05  33,631.71  78.8  8,734.12

53101  CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES  56,100.00  34,524.13  0.00  21,575.87  61.5  5,563.60

53102  MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES  60,200.00  34,990.95  0.00  25,209.05  58.1  6,058.89

53103  AUDIOVISUAL PROCESSING SUP  30,000.00  19,438.09  5,889.06  4,672.85  84.4  0.00

53104  BOOK PROCESSING SUPPLIES  25,000.00  13,159.61  0.00  11,840.39  52.6  2,426.92

53200  FUEL  58,000.00  27,159.16  0.00  30,840.84  46.8  0.00

53401  ADULT MATERIALS  847,684.00  420,347.97  0.00  427,336.03  49.6  29,768.58

53403  PERIODICALS  80,000.00  67,275.01  0.00  12,724.99  84.1  706.11

53405  JUVENILE BOOKS  496,458.00  213,730.76  0.00  282,727.24  43.1  10,285.90

53406  PROFESSIONAL COLLECTION  20,000.00  15,356.75  0.00  4,643.25  76.8  106.41

53407  INTERNATIONAL COLLECTION  76,000.00  38,296.32  0.00  37,703.68  50.4  568.50

53408  AUDIOVISUAL MATERIALS - ADULT  816,000.00  437,059.79  0.00  378,940.21  53.6  16,141.08

53409  AUDIOVISUAL MATERIALS - JUV  102,040.00  40,722.15  0.00  61,317.85  39.9  1,317.70

53411  ELECTRONIC INFO SOURCES  170,355.00  0.00  0.00  170,355.00  0.0  0.00

53412  REFERENCE SERIALS  36,414.00  6,276.21  0.00  30,137.79  17.2  354.58

53413  ELECTRONIC SERVICES  244,124.00  26,665.34  0.00  217,458.66  10.9  1,086.91

53414  ELECTRONIC COLLECTION  255,000.00  130,616.16  0.00  124,383.84  51.2  0.00

53464  VENDOR PROCESSING SERVICES  153,000.00  81,339.97  0.00  71,660.03  53.2  3,928.13

53490  COLLECTION PROJECTS  6,000.00  5,155.64  0.00  844.36  85.9  0.00

53499  GIFTS - MATERIALS  1,000.00  339.68  0.00  660.32  34.0  0.00

53500  MINOR EQUIPMENT  8,300.00  2,027.07  12.93  6,260.00  24.6  27.07

53501  FURNISHINGS  60,000.00  15,427.11  11,904.23  32,668.66  45.6  785.35

53502  IT HARDWARE  296,200.00  90,282.12  0.00  205,917.88  30.5  31,342.45

53503  PRINTERS  20,000.00  6,380.55  183.54  13,435.91  32.8  3,207.86

53505  SOFTWARE  33,500.00  16,324.06  3,282.00  13,893.94  58.5  6,561.89

54100  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  362,450.00  152,741.77  60,303.93  149,404.30  58.8  17,612.86

54101  LEGAL SERVICES  105,000.00  51,044.60  0.00  53,955.40  48.6  798.00

54102  COLLECTION AGENCY  30,000.00  11,881.91  0.00  18,118.09  39.6  2,282.25

54161  RESOURCE SHARING SERVICES  25,000.00  7,875.91  0.00  17,124.09  31.5  15.00

54162  BIBLIOGRAPHICS SERVICES  40,000.00  11,204.03  0.00  28,795.97  28.0  0.00

54163  PRINTING AND BINDING  2,000.00  820.67  0.00  1,179.33  41.0  0.00

54165  ILL LOST ITEM CHARGE  3,000.00  1,030.28  0.00  1,969.72  34.3  198.00

54200  POSTAGE  42,000.00  33,916.59  0.00  8,083.41  80.8  5,989.17

54201  TELEPHONE/DATA LINES  161,300.00  43,009.38  0.00  118,290.62  26.7  680.17

54300  TRAVEL  29,140.00  12,016.37  0.00  17,123.63  41.2  1,420.26

54301  MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENTS  31,050.00  19,007.81  0.00  12,042.19  61.2  2,813.65

54400  ADVERTISING  28,920.00  6,495.95  12,000.00  10,424.05  64.0  46.25



Pierce County Library System

Board Report - Budget to Actual by Object

Report as of: 7/31/2013

Printed on: 08/05/2013 Page 3 of 5

FUND: GENERAL FUND (01)

Object Year-To-Date

Actual

2013

Budget

Encumbrances Balance Expend

%Actual

July

EXPENSE ACCOUNTS

54501  RENTALS/LEASES - BUILDINGS  197,000.00  76,250.61  77,568.58  43,180.81  78.1  12,973.90

54502  RENTAL/LEASE - EQUIPMENT  32,000.00  17,356.28  10,608.04  4,035.68  87.4  2,728.07

54600  INSURANCE  189,500.00  720.00  0.00  188,780.00  0.4  0.00

54700  ELECTRICITY  220,000.00  133,466.44  0.00  86,533.56  60.7  15,779.33

54701  NATURAL GAS  17,000.00  6,380.56  0.00  10,619.44  37.5  310.87

54702  WATER  20,200.00  13,908.79  0.00  6,291.21  68.9  1,350.96

54703  SEWER  21,700.00  14,744.08  0.00  6,955.92  67.9  1,682.15

54704  REFUSE  22,500.00  12,789.18  0.00  9,710.82  56.8  315.50

54800  GENERAL REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE  204,300.00  101,549.94  41,244.03  61,506.03  69.9  15,686.14

54801  CONTRACTED MAINTENANCE  703,800.00  383,979.54  217,340.40  102,480.06  85.4  37,248.88

54803  MAINT. TELECOM EQUIPMENT  30,200.00  21,214.45  3,981.19  5,004.36  83.4  0.00

54805  VEHICLE REPAIR - MAJOR  0.00  8,406.65  0.00 (8,406.65)  0.0  3,202.94

54900  REGISTRATIONS  21,700.00  14,766.40  0.00  6,933.60  68.0  2,845.50

54901  DUES AND MEMBERSHIPS  31,320.00  4,370.00  543.00  26,407.00  15.7  0.00

54902  TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS  30,500.00  13,911.14  0.00  16,588.86  45.6  12.35

54903  LICENSES AND FEES  37,750.00  18,005.51  0.00  19,744.49  47.7  3,076.93

54904  MISCELLANEOUS  1,040.00  118.44  0.00  921.56  11.4  0.00

54905  EVENT REGISTRATION  0.00  1,151.15  0.00 (1,151.15)  0.0  0.00

55100  INTERGOVERMENTAL  15,000.00  0.00  0.00  15,000.00  0.0  0.00

56200  BUILDINGS & BLDG IMPROVEMENTS  0.00  5,677.86  0.00 (5,677.86)  0.0  0.00

56400  MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT  0.00  8,645.04  0.00 (8,645.04)  0.0  8,645.04

59700  TRANSFERS OUT  495,689.00  0.00  0.00  495,689.00  0.0  0.00

ALL OTHER EXPENSES  7,260,734.00  3,050,163.17  470,717.98  3,739,852.85  48.5  266,686.22

TOTAL FOR EXPENSE ACCOUNTS  13,557,607.02  25,546,570.00  470,717.98  54.9  11,518,245.00  1,933,103.04 

NET SURPLUS / DEFICIT  27,016.62  0.00 (470,717.98)  443,701.36  0.0 (1,749,299.52)



Pierce County Library System

Board Report - Budget to Actual by Object

Report as of: 7/31/2013

Printed on: 08/05/2013 Page 4 of 5

FUND: DEBT SERVICE FUND (20)

Object Year-To-Date

Actual

2013

Budget

Encumbrances Balance Expend

%Actual

July

REVENUE ACCOUNTS

31112  PROPERTY TAXES DELINQUENT  0.00  0.13  0.00 (0.13)  0.0 -0.02

TAXES:  0.00  0.13  0.00 (0.13)  0.0 -0.02

36110  INVESTMENT INCOME  0.00  82.62  0.00 (82.62)  0.0  9.00

CHARGES OTHER:  0.00  82.62  0.00 (82.62)  0.0  9.00

TOTAL FOR REVENUE ACCOUNTS  82.75  0.00  0.00  0.0 (82.75) 8.98 

NET SURPLUS / DEFICIT  82.75  0.00  0.00 (82.75)  0.0  8.98 



Pierce County Library System

Board Report - Budget to Actual by Object

Report as of: 7/31/2013

Printed on: 08/05/2013 Page 5 of 5

FUND: CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS FUND (30)

Object Year-To-Date

Actual

2013

Budget

Encumbrances Balance Expend

%Actual

July

REVENUE ACCOUNTS

29150  USE OF FUND BALANCE-BUDGET  1,793,411.00  1,793,411.00  0.00  0.00  100.0  1,793,411.00

36110  INVESTMENT INCOME  0.00  1,373.94  0.00 (1,373.94)  0.0  248.27

36700  FOUNDATION DONATIONS  0.00  96,900.26  0.00 (96,900.26)  0.0  0.00

 1,793,411.00  1,891,685.20  0.00 (98,274.20)  105.5 CHARGES OTHER:  1,793,659.27

39700  TRANSFERS IN  495,689.00  0.00  0.00  495,689.00  0.0  0.00

TOTAL FOR REVENUE ACCOUNTS  1,891,685.20  2,289,100.00  0.00  82.6  397,414.80  1,793,659.27 

EXPENSE ACCOUNTS

53100  OFFICE/OPERATING SUPPLIES  0.00  679.75  0.00 (679.75)  0.0  0.00

53102  MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES  0.00  397.28  0.00 (397.28)  0.0  0.00

53500  MINOR EQUIPMENT  2,500.00  3,952.57  0.00 (1,452.57)  158.1  0.00

53501  FURNISHINGS  0.00  30,426.98  1,859.80 (32,286.78)  0.0  6,564.00

53502  PC HARDWARE  0.00  20,303.68  0.00 (20,303.68)  0.0  0.00

53505  SOFTWARE  14,000.00  0.00  0.00  14,000.00  0.0  0.00

54100  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  161,900.00  85,677.15  52,923.14  23,299.71  85.6  1,592.25

54101  LEGAL SERVICES  0.00  1,110.00  0.00 (1,110.00)  0.0  0.00

54800  GENERAL REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE  10,000.00  745.01  1,291.17  7,963.82  20.4  0.00

54912  CONTINGENCY/RESERVE  67,000.00  0.00  0.00  67,000.00  0.0  0.00

56200  BUILDINGS & BLDG IMPROVEMENTS  510,000.00  87,012.77  282,520.76  140,466.47  72.5  0.00

56201  CONSTRUCTION  227,600.00  112,227.18  0.00  115,372.82  49.3  0.00

56202  ELECTRICAL  17,100.00  43,364.84  0.00 (26,264.84)  253.6  0.00

56203  FLOORING  0.00  24,350.15  0.00 (24,350.15)  0.0  0.00

56204  PAINTING AND WALL TREATMENTS  3,000.00  0.00  0.00  3,000.00  0.0  0.00

56400  MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT  66,000.00  48,993.15  0.00  17,006.85  74.2  0.00

56401  VEHICLES  160,000.00  0.00  0.00  160,000.00  0.0  0.00

56402  HVAC  1,050,000.00  28,115.80  26,956.16  994,928.04  5.2  0.00

TOTAL FOR EXPENSE ACCOUNTS  487,356.31  2,289,100.00  365,551.03  37.3  1,436,192.66  8,156.25 

NET SURPLUS / DEFICIT  1,404,328.89  0.00 (365,551.03) (1,038,777.86)  0.0  1,785,503.02 



 
 

3005 112th St. E.  *  Tacoma, WA 98446-2215  *  253-548-3300  *  FAX 253-537-4600 
piercecountylibrary.org 

 
 
 
 
 

 Date:  August 2, 2013 

 To:  Linda Ishem, Chair Board of Trustees, fellow Board members, Neel Parikh – Executive Director 

 From: Judy T Nelson 

 Subject: New Grants for Youth Services 

 
The Pierce County Library System’s Youth Services program is very excited to be able to announce that, 
because of the success of the Pierce County Library Foundation who have secured several grants, the Library 
will be able to offer block STEM programs and events across the entire county and will be creating Science to 
Go kits and theme bags along with parent oriented science curriculum and programs beginning in three school 
districts.   

July was a very successful month for securing grant funding for several Youth Services projects.  With the 
completion of the PCL Foundation funded Project Blocks at seven designated locations, the Library wanted to 
expand the availability of blocks and block centers to as many physical branches as possible. By placing block 
centers across the county, PCLS will have positioned itself to provide ongoing free STEM opportunities for all 
families and child cares across the entire county.   Earlier this spring an $8000 grant was secured from the 
Greater Tacoma Community Foundation to add blocks and cabinets to five sites, leaving three, (possibly five) 
more sites to be funded. (University Place secured their own funding for a block center through a UP Friends 
project honoring their retired Branch Manager, Cindy Bonaro).   In July, the Pierce County Library Foundation 
was notified that we were selected to receive $5000 from the Lucky Seven Foundation to complete the set-up of 
our county-wide effort.  Blocks and cabinets have been ordered for the eight identified locations and it is 
possible that the final ninth and tenth sites will also get some kind of block materials for use in their facility.  
The remaining two facilities do not lend themselves to having an actual block cabinet in the building, so we are 
exploring alternatives.  It is our intention to have the block centers in place before the beginning of the fall 
storytimes sessions begin in late September. 

The Library was also notified that we were successful in securing a Paul Allen Grant in the amount of $175,000 
to fund the “Science to Go” project for children and families with children in grades kindergarten to 3.  The 
grant will fund the hiring of a staff person to execute the project which will include building an advisory 
committee, helping purchase new science related books and theme bags to put them in, working with three 
school districts who are also part of the all school library card campaigns, creating common core related 
curriculum, putting all the materials online and integrating it into the adult Paul Allen grant work that is already 
in progress. This project started August 1st, 2013.  Additional details will be reported as we begin to execute the 
initiatives outlines in the grant proposal. 

All this work in expected to be integrated into the ongoing work of the youth services librarians, storytellers, 
early learning librarians and teen librarians as PCLS continues to look for opportunities to work with school 
districts, child cares, families and organizations who serve children and families. 

 

 

 











 

 

3005 112 th St. E.  *  Tacoma, WA 98446-2215  *  253-548-3300  *  FAX 253-537-4600 
piercecountylibrary.org 

 

 

 

 

 

 Date: August 2, 2013  

 To:  Chair Linda Ishem and members of the Board of Trustees 

 From: Lorie Erickson, Facilities Director 

 Subject: Fife Turnaround Project 

 
 

The City of Fife has approved drawing for parking lot improvements at the Fife Library to include 6 additional 
parking spaces and a turnaround to improve egress from the current parking lot of the Fife Library.  While the 
current number of parking spaces does meet code, the additional spaces will help address customer concerns 
regarding lack of parking during times of peak usage.  In addition, the turnaround will help ease congestion 
experience during times peak usage.  The work includes temporary erosion control, horizontal control, 
surfacing, grading, and drainage.  The existing stormwater systems are adequate to serve the improvements.  
Plants will be added to the east side of the walkway to mimic the other walks.  Drought tolerant shrubs will be 
installed in the traffic circle.  In addition, site lighting will be added in the traffic circle. 

The project will go out to bid in mid-August.  The project is expected to take approximately 2 months with 
work commencing in early September. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  





 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 Date: August 6, 2013 

 To: Chair Linda Ishem and Members of the Board 

 From: Neel Parikh, Executive Director 

 Subject: University Place Library Civic Building Condominium Association Update 

 

Lianna Collinge has completed her work establishing the Condominium Association and 
allocating costs for the last two years.  She is ready for the first official meeting of the 
Condominium Board.  Lianna is hoping to schedule that meeting sometime in August.  

Lianna outlines that there are three usage levels of percentages we are subject to: 

1. By element, whether parking, atrium or commons.   

2. By service, based upon the actual vendor time in a particular area or element.  This 
includes security and specific other tasks.   

3. By space, specifically for the common area, employing the BOMA standards for 
measuring office space.  This means that she applied a square footage measurement to the 
entire building and then attributed a percentage based on usable square footage (water, 
lighting, mechanical) that provide services to the entire building allowing them to 
correctly allocate the cost by owner (or in the future by occupant).  

Based on those calculations the Library System owes the city approximately $28,000.   

During the Board meeting, the Association will open two bank accounts for operating and  
reserve.  In addition, Lianna has drafted a contract for managing the Association. 

Attached for your information is the draft Condominium Association Board Agenda.  I will bring 
you up to date regarding this matter during the Board meeting if we meet prior to the meeting. 

  

 

  

Neel Parikh, Executive Director  3005 112th St East  Tacoma, Washington 98446-2215  253.548-3300  FAX 253.537.4600 
www.piercecountylibrary.org 





 

 

Neel Parikh, Executive Director   3005 112 th St East  Tacoma, Washington 98446-2215  253.548-3300  FAX 253.537.4600 
www.piercecountylibrary.org 

 

 

 

 

 

 Date: August 6, 2013 

 To: Chair Linda Ishem and Members of the Board 

 From: Neel Parikh, Executive Director 

   Subject:  Department Head Searches 

 

I am very sorry to lose two extremely talented members of the Library’s Administrative Team.  

However, we are moving quickly in order to fill these vacancies. 

 

Staff Experience Director: We have advertised the vacancy and the application 

deadline was July 19, 2013.  We have narrowed down the list to 9 qualified 

applicants and are currently in the process of reviewing final applications and 

scheduling interviews.  We are working with Joe Carrillo to review the candidates 

and develop the process. 

 

Marketing & Community Relations Director:  The position was announced 

Monday, August 5, 2013 and the deadline for applications is August 30, 2013.   

 

We will bring you up to date regarding both of these positions during the Board meeting. 

 

 

 

  

 

  



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 Date: August 6, 2013 

 To: Chair Linda Ishem and Members of the Board 

 From: Neel Parikh, Executive Director 

 Subject: Urban Libraries Council Partners Conference 

 

Attached is information regarding an Urban Libraries Council Partners Conference in Seattle on 
November 12-14.  Urban Libraries Council events are usually excellent and very informative.  I 
highly recommend you consider attending this event. This should be an excellent opportunity for 
Board members to explore the role of libraries in learning.  However, the second day of the 
conference is scheduled the same day as the Board meeting.  During the Board meeting I hope to 
have more information regarding the second day and how we should handle this event.   

 
 
  

 

  

Neel Parikh, Executive Director  3005 112th St East  Tacoma, Washington 98446-2215  253.548-3300  FAX 253.537.4600 
www.piercecountylibrary.org 













 

 

 

 Date: July 23, 2013 

 To: Linda Ishem and members of the Board of Trustees 

 Cc: Mary Getchell, Marketing & Community Relations Director 

 From: Kit Thompson, Content Writer 

 Subject: Library Card Design Contest Results 

 
Between June 17 and July 6, enthusiastic Pierce County residents cast nearly 7,000 online votes 
to choose the top designs from Pierce County Library System’s Card Design Contest. From 20 
artist-selected finalists—out of nearly 1,000 entries by students in grades K-6 and grades 7-12—
the public chose designs by Megan Cannon, 11, Puyallup, Fruitland Elementary, and Katie 
Howard, 17, Lakewood, Steilacoom High School.  
 
Cannon’s watercolor design includes a background script with quotes from books she’s read and 
highlights two giant flowers growing above the word “READ.” Howard’s digital design is 
whimsical with a “Guardians of Ga'Hoole” fantasy book series appeal, featuring an owl reading a 
book. 
 
Among the 1,000 entries, 7th-12th graders submitted approximately 100 designs, with the 
remaining entries from students in grades K-6. Submissions came in the form of 86 online, 
nearly 900 on paper, and one on canvas. This year some students entered as a team, including 
one brother and sister pair. 
 
The winning artwork will appear on new library cards, with the students’ names appearing on the 
cards. Kids, teens, and people of all ages may get the new cards, which will be available during the 
Library’s seventh annual card drive in October 2013. 
 
The Steilacoom Historical School District and Puyallup School District are communicating 
through their channels about their contest-winning students. The Library will provide posters of 
the winning designs to the Districts. Franklin Pierce School District also posted contest 
information on its website. 
 
News coverage included local print and online media. We reached 4,197 people with our five 
Facebook posts, gaining 41 likes, 5 comments, and 3 shares. 
 
Students participated eagerly, and parents and teachers demonstrated interest. The contest 
generated support from the public for the Library, and provided an opportunity for staff 
throughout the Library System to work together to serve our communities. The Library plans to 
continue holding the contest every other year, with the next contest scheduled for 2015. 







 

 

 Date: July 2, 2013 

 To: Chair Linda Ishem and members of the Board of Trustees 

 From: Mary Getchell, Marketing & Community Relations Director 

 Subject: E-book Blockade Update 

 
In response to recent progress and news articles regarding some thawing in the e-book 
blockade, I updated our e-book communications, with review by Reading & Materials Director 
Lisa Bitney and Collections Librarian Matt Lemanski. The good news is that all six major 
publishers are now selling e-books to libraries—or say they will do so soon. Unfortunately, the 
publishers are imposing heavy restrictions or inflated prices to libraries.  
 
E-book formats are complicated and still considered a new format. We still need a fair market 
price and business plan to bring libraries and the public more equitably into the e-book market. 
 
As of summer 2013: 
 

• Hachette Book Group—selling all e-books to libraries. The price tag to libraries is 
approximately three times higher than the cost to retailers.  

• Penguin—selling its entire e-book offerings to libraries. Each book we purchase expires 
after one year.  E-books check out just like paper books, one at a time. So, if an e-book 
checked out all year for three weeks each, it would expire after approximately 17 
checkouts. Paper books are almost always checked out many more times; hardcover 
books check out on average 30-50 times and paperbacks check out about 15-20 times.  

• Macmillan Publishing—conducting a small pilot project with libraries. It sells a portion 
of its offerings to libraries. Libraries may purchase each e-book for two years or 52 
checkouts.  

• Simon & Schuster--launched a pilot project with New York libraries, which has each e-
book expire after one year of purchase with inflated pricing anticipated. Simon & 
Schuster has stated it will make e-books available to other libraries in 2014.  

 
As of summer 2012 and 2013 HarperCollins Publisher and Random House, Inc. continue to sell 
to libraries at exorbitant prices and restrictions: 
 

• HarperCollins Publisher—selling e-books to libraries with each book expiring after 26 
checkouts. 

• Random House, Inc.—selling e-books to libraries at prices nearly three times higher than 
e-book prices from retailers.  

 
We updated talking points for staff to respond to the public, information on our website, and 
included a message in our weekly “Happenings” listserv. 



E-book Results Staff Talking Points 
July 2, 2013 
  
 
Please use the following talking points in response to customers’ inquiries regarding the e-book 
blockade. 
 
Key Messages: 
 

• Thank you for participating in the e-book blockade, aka Scrooge campaign. 
 
• We have good news—all six major publishers are now selling e-books to libraries—or 

say they will do so soon. 
 

• The publishers are imposing heavy restrictions or inflated prices to libraries.  
 
• E-book formats are complicated and still considered a new format. Pierce County Library 

System is happy that we are making some progress.  
 

• We still need a fair market price and business plan to bring libraries and the public more 
equitably into the e-book market. 

 
Additional Publishers E-book Selling Messages: 
 

• As of summer 2013: 
 

• Hachette Book Group—selling all e-books to libraries. The cost to libraries is 
approximately three times higher than the price tag retailers charge consumers. The 
price tag to libraries is approximately three times than the cost to retailers. On 
average Pierce County Library will pay $44 for each e-book from Hachette, while 
Amazon.com, Inc. and Barnes & Noble, Inc. will actually sell the same e-books to 
consumers at approximately $11 each.   

 
• Penguin—selling its entire e-book offerings to libraries. Each book we purchase 

expires after one year.  E-books check out just like paper books, one at a time. So, if 
an e-book checked out all year for three weeks each, it would expire after 
approximately 17 checkouts. Paper books are almost always checked out many more 
times; hardcover books check out on average 30-50 times and paperbacks check out 
about 15-20 times.  

 
• Macmillan Publishing—conducting a small pilot project with libraries. It sells a 

portion of its offerings to libraries. Libraries may purchase each e-book for two years 
or 52 checkouts, whichever comes first.  

 
• Simon & Schuster--launched a pilot project with New York libraries, which has each 

e-book expire after one year of purchase. We anticipate an inflated pricing model 
once Simon & Schuster sells to other libraries, including Pierce County Library. 
Simon & Schuster has stated it will make e-books available to other libraries in 2014.  



E-book Results Staff Talking Points 
July 2, 2013 
  
 

• As of summer 2012 and 2013 HarperCollins Publisher and Random House, Inc. continue 
to sell to libraries at exorbitant prices and restrictions: 

 
• HarperCollins Publisher—selling e-books to libraries with each book expiring after 

26 checkouts. 
 

• Random House, Inc.—selling e-books to libraries at very high prices. On average 
Pierce County Library pays nearly three times more for an e-book than retailers.  

 
Additional Public Involvement/Campaign Messages: 
 

• As of summer 2012, four major book publishers were not selling e-books to libraries’ 
primary vendor for e-books, Overdrive. 

 
• Hachette Book Group  
• Penguin  
• Macmillan Publishing 
• Simon & Schuster  

 
• As of summer 2012, two major publishers were selling to Overdrive at exorbitant prices 

and restrictions: 
 

• HarperCollins Publisher (e-books expire after 26 checkouts) 
• Random House, Inc. (very high prices) 

 
• In November 2012, Pierce County Library System launched a campaign to inform and 

involve the public with the e-book blockade. We encouraged customers to contact publishers 
to tell them they want e-books from their Library. 

 
• We asked people to take grassroots action and participate in a letter-writing campaign to 

publishers, via email and postcards we provided. The purpose of the letter-writing campaign 
was to gain publishers’ attention. 

 
• As a result, people picked up 10,400 postcards from our libraries, for approximately 1,700 

postcards sent to each of the six publishers.  
 
• In all we verified that people sent 724 emails from 258 unique email addresses. 

 

• Throughout the campaign, American Library Association, Public Library Association, and 
Urban Library Council continued to work with publishers to break the blockade. 

  



E-book Results Staff Talking Points 
July 2, 2013 
  
• We do not know directly whether our Scrooge campaign played a role in the break.  
 
• We do know our campaign gained national attention from libraries and library associations. 

In fact, our staff gave a webinar to more than 300 libraries that were interested in replicating 
and learning from the campaign.  

 











 



 

 

 Date: August 6, 2013 

 To: Chair Linda Ishem and Members of the Board of Trustees 

 From: Clifford Jo, Director of Finance & IT 

 Subject: PAC HVAC Project 

 
In the July Board meeting, we proposed that the Board approve a mid-year capital improvement 
plan that included a revised cost for the PAC HVAC. The Board had questions regarding the 
increases to the project cost to which I was not present to answer. 
 
The PAC HVAC is an expensive project and we have determined its accurate cost to be 
$1,126,000 before any energy rebates are received. During the August Board meeting, I would 
like to spend a few minutes going over the project and discuss what happened, and answer any 
questions you have. 
 
I’ve attached last month’s Board memo summarizing the HVAC project details. 
 



 

 

 Date: July 1, 2013 

 To: Chair Linda Ishem and Members of the Board of Trustees 

 From: Clifford Jo, Director of Finance & IT 

 Subject: PAC HVAC Project—cost increase 

 
The PAC HVAC replacement project began in 2012 with an original budget of $367,600. During 
the 2012 mid-year budget process, we discovered that the cost would greatly exceed the budget, 
so we hired a firm (FSi) to conduct a realistic study of the costs and postponed the project until 
2013. As a result, FSi recommended a design that would cost the Library $840,000, and 
anticipated some savings from energy equipment rebates but we didn’t know how much. 
 
Several months ago we revisited the costs and discovered that the FSi study underestimated the 
design and the cost. An RFP was issued for an engineer and MCS was awarded. They conducted 
a comprehensive engineering design and thoroughly studied the configurations needed and the 
associated costs. Their design includes a better overall system and equipment that: 
 

1. Improves the energy efficiencies 
2. Increases the potential rebate value available from PSE 
3. Extends the lifespan by several years by purchasing better HVAC equipment. 

 
The cost for this system, including engineering ($83,144) is now estimated at $1,126,000. The 
anticipated Tacoma Power rebate is around $123,000, so the project’s net cost is $1,003,000. 
 
MCS suggested several design options. A value-based option was a gas pack system. It would 
have saved us procurement costs but would have only lasted 15-18 years instead of 20+, was less 
efficient in energy use, and provided no option for energy equipment rebates. As a point of 
reference, the current PAC HVACs have been in place 21 years but have needed extensive 
servicing over the years. 
 
The new system is a heat-pump based system and heating runs on natural gas, thereby reducing 
electrical costs. Included in the cost is an overhaul of the interior variable air volume (VAV) 
systems and ducting, and replacing the automated controlling systems to the version we are using 
in all other buildings. The VAV system in PAC is antiquated, out of code, and ineffective in 
balancing the conditioning throughout the building. Some offices are much hotter/cooler than 
others, requiring local heating solutions. 
 
We recommend the Board approve this project as part of the 2013 mid-year budget. Once 
approved, we will soon issue an RFP for the contractor. So the PAC remains open during its 
normal business hours, the project will be conducted in a manner that is minimally disruptive to 
staff, customers, and services. 



M  E  M  O 
 
 
 Date:  August 5, 2013 

 To: Linda Ishem and Members of the Board of Trustees 
 From: Clifford Jo, Finance & Business Director 

 Subject: 2014 Budget Process and Calendar 
 
 
Following is the process and key calendar dates for the 2014 budget: 
 

Date 2014 Budget Activities 
Early August Budget Process Budget: 

• Neel and Georgia create budget instructions 
• Budget packets sent to managers 
• Managers create 2014 budget proposal 

August 14 Budget Trustees meeting: 
• Review 2014 budget calendar/process 

August – Sept. Library management reviews managers’ proposals 
September 11 Budget Trustees meeting: 

• Follow up discussion from previous Board Meeting 
• Review of 2014 projected revenues and expenditures 

Mid-September Preliminary certification of property tax received from the County 
Mid-October IPD furnished by Department of Revenue and County Assessor/Treasurer. 

Note: due to project values’ having declined significantly, and any new 
growth having not restored the decline in revenue, the mill rate will 
continue to be at 50 cents; therefore the IPD has no bearing on revenues. 

October 16 Budget Trustees meeting: 
• Review of 2014 draft revenue and expenditure (balanced budget) 
• Review of 2014-18 Capital Improvement Plan projects and budget 

November 13 Budget Trustees meeting: 
• First public hearing regarding the 2014 budget 
• Review of draft 2014 budget & Capital Improvement Plan 
• Review and approve motion to certify property taxes to be levied for 

collection in 2014 
• Decision for IPD/tax increase considerations (likely not necessary) 

December 11 Budget Trustees meeting: 
• Second public hearing regarding the 2014 budget 
• Resolution to adopt 2014 budget 
• Resolution to adopt 2014 Capital Improvement Fund budget 
• Motion to certify property tax levied for collection in 2014 (if needed) 

December 13 File updated budget resolution with the County 
December 31 File revised property tax levy certifications with the County (if necessary) 

 



M  E  M  O 
 
 
 Date:  August 5, 2013 

 To: Linda Ishem and Members of the Board of Trustees 
 From: Clifford Jo, Finance & Business Director 

 Subject: 2013 CPI-U 
 
 
The recently agreed upon contract uses the Bureau of Labor and Standard’s (BLS) June to June 
Seattle-Tacoma-Bremerton Consumer Price Index (Urban) to calculate the following fiscal 
year’s Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA). 
 
Per attached, the June-June CPI-U for our area was reported as 1.4%. Under the new labor 
contract, a COLA formula is set at 50% of the CPI-U with a floor of 1%. Therefore, the formula 
calculates as 1.4% x 50% = 0.7%, which means the 1% floor would become the COLA. 
 
This formula was set only for 2014 wages. For 2015, it will restore to the traditional 90% of CPI-
U. 



Percent Change Percent Change
MONTHLY DATA Indexes 1 Month Indexes 1 Month

ending ending
Jun May Jun May Jun Jun Jun May Jun May Jun Jun

2012 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2012 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013

U. S. City Average................................. 229.478 232.945 233.504 1.4 1.8 0.2 226.036 229.399 230.002 1.2 1.8 0.3
(1967=100)............................................ 687.415 697.798 699.473 - - - 673.291 683.309 685.104 - - -
Los Angeles-Riverside-Orange Co  236.025 239.346 239.223 1.0 1.4 -0.1 228.917 232.387 232.378 1.0 1.5 0.0
(1967=100)............................................ 697.323 707.135 706.772 - - - 676.518 686.773 686.748 - - -
West ..................................................... 232.701 235.979 236.227 1.3 1.5 0.1 227.543 230.555 230.723 1.0 1.4 0.1
(Dec. 1977 = 100) ................................. 376.149 381.447 381.847 - - - 366.104 370.950 371.221 - - -
West – A*............................................... 236.926 240.640 241.033 1.4 1.7 0.2 230.189 233.804 234.117 1.3 1.7 0.1
(Dec. 1977 = 100) ................................. 386.342 392.397 393.037 - - - 372.631 378.483 378.990 - - -
West – B/C**(Dec. 1996=100)............... 140.375 141.838 141.805 0.7 1.0 0.0 140.598 141.836 141.763 0.5 0.8 -0.1

Percent Change Percent Change
BI-MONTHLY DATA Indexes 2 Months Indexes 2 Months

ending ending
Jun Apr Jun Apr Jun Jun Jun Apr Jun Apr Jun Jun

2012 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2012 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013

San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose......... 239.806 244.675 245.935 2.4 2.6 0.5 236.890 241.764 243.052 2.2 2.6 0.5
(1967=100)............................................ 737.231 752.199 756.074 - - - 721.349 736.190 740.114 - - -
Seattle-Tacoma-Bremerton................... 239.540 240.823 242.820 1.2 1.4 0.8 236.222 237.405 238.963 1.1 1.2 0.7
(1967=100)............................................ 730.211 734.122 740.211 - - - 700.634 704.143 708.763 - - -

*  A = 1,500,000 population and over                                              ** B/C = less than 1,500,000 population                                                 Dash (-) = Not Available.

CONSUMER PRICE INDEXES PACIFIC CITIES AND U. S. CITY AVERAGE
June 2013

ALL ITEMS INDEXES
(1982-84=100 unless otherwise noted)

All Urban Consumers (CPI-U) Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers (CPI-W)

Year Year
ending ending

All Urban Consumers (CPI-U) Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers (CPI-W)

This card is available on the day of release by electronic distribution.  Just go to www.bls.gov/bls/list.htm and sign up for the free on-line delivery service.  For 
questions, please contact us at BLSinfoSF@BLS.GOV or (415) 625-2270.

Year Year
ending ending

Release date Jul. 16, 2013.  The next monthly releases are scheduled for Aug. 15, 2013. The next bi-monthly releases are scheduled for Sep. 17, 2013.

Please note:  As of October 1, 2009 all hotline numbers were discontinued with the exception of San Francisco's. Customers can continue to receive information by calling the 
BLS West Region Information Office: (415) 625-2270.



 









































































































 

 

Neel Parikh, Executive Director   3005 112 th St East  Tacoma, Washington 98446-2215  253.548-3300  FAX 253.537.4600 
www.piercecountylibrary.org 

 

 

 

 

 

 Date: August 6, 2013 

 To: Chair Linda Ishem and Members of the Board 

 From: Neel Parikh, Executive Director 

 Subject: Board Visioning of the Library Future 

 

Over the past two weeks Catherine McHugh has talked with each of you regarding your vision 

for the Pierce County Library System’s future.  This is the first step towards articulating 

predictions about the future and identifying critical issues and key priorities that are on PCLS’s 

horizon. 

 

Catherine is now compiling your responses and will send you a report by August 9
th

.  During the 

Board meeting you will discuss the report and refine the vision of the library future.  By now you 

should have received an email from Catherine clarifying what to be prepared to discuss. 

 

We have already had a similar discussion at the Management staff level.  These conversations 

have been very interesting and helpful. Later this month Catherine will be talking with eight 

community leaders with similar questions. 

 

 

  

 

  


	Binder1draft
	Board Meeting Agenda August 2013
	1 Consent Agenda Page
	2 Board Minutes 20130710
	3 July 2013 Payroll Benefits Vouchers
	4 Resolution 2013-06 Surplus
	1 Officers Report Page
	3 FINANCIAL REPORT- JULY 2013
	FINANCIAL REPORT JULY 2013
	FINANCIAL BUDGET v ACTUAL JULY 2013

	4 STEM Grants
	5 Gig Harbor Landscaping
	6 Fife Turnaround Project
	8 UP Condo Assoc Update
	20130806094650602

	9 Dept. Head Searches
	10 ULC Partners Conference
	ULC Partners Conference
	20130806094650602

	11 2012 IRS Tax Form 990 for final review.docx
	IRS Tax Form 990 for 2012 - final review
	2012 Form 990 - Pierce Co Rural Library Dist
	Government Copy Cover Sheet
	Form 990 - Return of Exempt Organization Pg 1
	Form 990 - Return of Exempt Organization Pg 2
	Form 990 - Return of Exempt Organization Pg 3
	Form 990 - Return of Exempt Organization Pg 4
	Form 990 - Return of Exempt Organization Pg 5
	Form 990 - Return of Exempt Organization Pg 6
	Form 990 - Return of Exempt Organization Pg 7
	Form 990 - Return of Exempt Organization Pg 8
	Form 990 - Return of Exempt Organization Pg 9
	Form 990 - Return of Exempt Organization Pg 10
	Form 990 - Return of Exempt Organization Pg 11
	Form 990 - Return of Exempt Organization Pg 12
	Schedule A - Public Charity Status and Public Support Page 1
	Schedule A - Public Charity Status and Public Support Page 2
	Schedule A - Public Charity Status and Public Support Page 3
	Schedule B - Schedule of Contributors Pg 1
	Schedule B - Schedule of Contributors Pg 2
	Schedule B - Schedule of Contributors Pg 3
	Schedule B - Schedule of Contributors Pg 4
	Schedule D - Supplemental Financial Statements Page 1
	Schedule D - Supplemental Financial Statements Page 2
	Schedule D - Supplemental Financial Statements Page 3
	Schedule D - Supplemental Financial Statements Page 4
	Schedule J - Compensation Information for Officers, Directors, etc., Page 1
	Schedule J - Compensation Information for Officers, Directors, etc., Page 2
	Schedule O - Supplemental Information  Page 1
	Schedule O - Supplemental Information (Continuation)
	Schedule R - Related Organizations and Unrelated Partnerships Page 1
	Schedule R - Related Organizations and Unrelated Partnerships Page 2
	Schedule R - Related Organizations and Unrelated Partnerships Page 3
	Schedule R - Related Organizations and Unrelated Partnerships Page 4
	Schedule R - Related Organizations and Unrelated Partnerships Page 5
	Form 8879-EO - IRS e-file Signature Authorization

	2012 Board FORM 990 review acknowledgement form

	12 E-book Blockade Update
	Ebook Blockade Update
	Ebook Results Staff Talking Points

	13 PCLS- Service Area Population
	PCLS Service Area Population
	Pierce County Population Estimates 2013 updated

	14 Summit Roof Replacement
	15 Library Card Design Contest- Results
	Library Card Design Contest Results
	45 Flowers Vote
	920 Owl - Vote
	Card Contest Winners_Schools and News
	Card Contest Winners_Steilacoom
	Card Contest Winners_Suburban Times
	7,000 votes select new library cards, designed by kids

	Card Contest Winners_The News Tribune


	16 Growing Young Minds

	17 Foundation Board Minutes
	18- Resignation Letters Holly Mary
	19 Summer Learning Loss Article
	Binder1draft
	1 Unfinished Business Page
	2 PAC HVAC
	2 PAC HVAC 20130806
	3 Memo to Board re Original HVAC 20130701

	3 2014 Budget Calendar 20130805
	4 2014 CPIU 20130805
	1 New Business Page
	2 Intellectual Freedom and PCLS Practices Aug 5 2013
	Intellectual Freedom and PCLS Practices Aug 5 2013
	Intellectual Freedom Board Policies Aug 5 2013

	3 Board Visioning of the Library Future

	June 2013 Dashboard.pdf
	DASHBOARD (2)




